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Local Historic District: Faubourg Marigny

State Cultural District: St. Claude Corridor

National Historic District: Faubourg Marigny

Zoning Description: HMC-2, Historic 

Marigny/Tremé/Bywater Commercial District

Property Description: SQ 398 LOT 1 OR 3 ST CLAUDE & 

ST FERDINAND 32X118 DBLE 8/RM S/R 2801-03 ST 

CLAUDE AVE

Built: c. 1880

Style: Italianate 

Type: Shotgun Double Camelback

Original Adress: 677-677 ½ St Claude

Property Description 
2803 St Claude

“Redlining Map, 1939” Map of Greater New Orleans, Compiled & Drawn by Wm. E. 

Boesch, Louisiana State Museum Historical Map Collection
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Chain of Title
4223 St Claude
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Neighborhood History
Faubourg Marigny

Though the area between Franklin Ave and Press Street is 

considered part of Faubourg Marigny today this narrow section 

of land between the Marigny Plantation and what is now the 

Bywater Neighborhood was still the D’Aunoy Plantation in 1805 

when Bernard Xavier Philippe de Marigny de Mandeville 

petitioned the City Council to allow the subdivision of his 

plantation. 

When the City was laid out the land adjacent to the city 

fortification was reserved as a commons (what is now Marigny, 

Treme, and Central Business District). The Company of the Indies 

granted land for the first plantation below the original city 

(French Quarter) around 1720. This tract was known as La 

Brasserie, given it was the site of the first manufacturing 

establishment in New Orleans, a brewery. 

In 1809 thousands of Haitian refugees arrived in New Orleans 

escaping the revolution.  Bernard Marigny offered to sell 

property in his new faubourg with no down payment to these 

French speaking refugees. This solidified this area as the French 

speaking creole faubourg as the Americans expanded into 

Faubourg St Mary (CBD) upriver of the original city. 

Topographical Map of New Orleans and its Vicinity, 

downtown and West Bank, 1833, Charles F. Zimpel, 

Historic New Orleans Collection.
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Neighborhood History
SQ 398

As the first land grant below the city, it has passed 

though many hands. First granted to Pierre Dreux in 

1720 by the Company of the Indies, the land was sold 

in 1745, after Dreux’s death to C. Villars Dubreuil, 

owner of the adjoining plantation. After a succession 

of owners, including Don Bernardo de Galvez in 1777, 

the Spanish Governor at the time, Nicolas Daunoy, 

purchased the land in 1795. From this time on, the 

land tract was known as the Faubourg Daunoy and 

was defined as the land between Franklin up to and 

including Press Street, from the river to the back 

swamp. Brigitte Daunoy, daughter to Nicolas, sold 

the land to the Company of Architects in 1832. 

With this areas proximity to the New Orleans & 

Northeastern Railroad, which ran along the river 

ports and out of the city along Press Street, half of 

the block was used for warehouses adjacent to the 

train tracks. The uptown side of the block has had a 

consistent history of working class shotgun houses 

and small businesses. Square 398, Lot Plan, Real Estate & 

Records City of New Orleans.



4223 St Claude| Historic Property Report 

Neighborhood History
N.O. & N.E.R.R.

The New Orleans & Northeastern Railroad played a significant role 
in the development and economic growth of the southeastern 
United States after the Civil War. Its history is marked by its 
strategic importance in connecting major cities and facilitating the 
movement of goods and passengers, fostering significant economic 
growth. It provided a critical supply chain route for the movement 
of agricultural products, notably cotton, timber, and later, oil 
products.

It was on the N.O. & N.E. in 1892, that Homer Plessy deliberately sat 
in a whites-only train car and refused to move when asked. This was 
part of a planned effort by a group of black citizens known as the 
Committee of Citizens to challenge the Louisiana 1890 Separate Car 
Act, which required separate railway cars for black and white 
passengers. The case resulted in the 1896 Supreme Court decision 
that established the "separate but equal" doctrine, which legally 
sanctioned racial segregation across the United States for nearly 60 
years until it was overturned by Brown v. Board of Education in 
1954.

Formally, the N.O. & N.E. disappeared in 1969 when it was merged 
into the Southern Railway subsidiary Alabama Great Southern.  
However, it remains a vital component of the modern Norfolk 
Southern's main line to New Orleans.

Above: St Claude Avenue,

Department of Streets,

New Orleans City Archives.

Left: American-Rails.com
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Neighborhood History
Barry Family

As a major port city, New Orleans has always had a significant 
immigrant population. Moving into the later 1800s the creole 
faubourgs, traditionally French speaking, saw a wider array of 
immigrants, including Irish, Swedish, Norwegian, German, 
and Prussian populations, among others.  The double shotgun 
house built at what was at the time 677 St Claude was owned 
by Joseph Barry, an Irish immigrant and laborer who died in 
1880 and left the home to Mary Barry, his only daughter, who 
eventually left this house and two others in the neighborhood 
to her brothers when she died in 1916. Her eldest brother 
Joseph kept the now three-unit rental property until his 
death. His two children, Marie and Joseph, sold the property 
to Wilfred Schneida, who employed his many family 
members at his small chain of Bill’s Food Stores. 

1880 Census

New Orleans States

July 3, 1958
1894 City Directory
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Property History
Maps

The Robinson’s Atlas of the City of 

New Orleans, was published by E. 

Robinson in New York City in 

1883. The title page states that it 

was compiled from surveys by 

New Orleans city surveyor and 

architect John F. Braun. Braun 

most likely created the maps 

during the latter part of the 

1870s. This map was used for 

insurance purposes and was the 

predecessor to the Sanborn maps.

The Robinsons Atlas of the City of New Orleans, 1883.

E. Robinson, New York, publisher

New Orleans Notarial Archive
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1908

Property History
Sanborn Maps

Sanborn's Insurance Maps

Sanborn Fire insurance maps were used in the 
late 19th and early 20th century to insure 
property in urban areas. These maps help to 
date a building, denote number of floors, 
building materials and use. These maps were 
updated regularly and make it possible to 
track changes in the property over time.

1937 1951

1893 1896
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Property History
2801 St Claude

Times-Picayune

January 17, 1909

Times-Picayune

December 18, 1949

Times-Picayune

September 13, 1917

1900 Census

World War I Draft Card, 1918

William Fred Brunssann
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Property Use
2803 St Claude

NO State-Item

June 18, 1927

New Orleans States

February 13, 1953

New Orleans States

April 7, 1947
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Architectural Changes

All buildings are altered over time, adapting to the way we use 

them. This double shotgun house has evolved into a mixed use 

commercial and residential building and finally a fully 

commercial use. 

While the Barry Family originally lived in one side of the double, 

after 1909 it was used as a rental property.  The 2801 side was 

broken into two commercial units with the second using a St 

Ferdinand address, while the 2803 unit remained a residential 

unit. Today the front facade of the building retains much of its 

original appearance, though a later camelback addition was 

added to the rear.  Inside however much of the original interior 

walls and details have been removed to serve its commercial 

use. 

1908 1951

New Orleans States-Item

January 22, 1974
Times-Picayune

November 24, 1967
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Erika Gates
erika@gatespreservation.com

832-444-1231
gatespreservation.com

This property report is produced is for personal informational use only. All documents, photos, maps, etc. within this report are 

the property of multiple archival institutions and may require further permission to be copied or published. Please consult Gates 

Preservation prior to distributing any copies of this report or publishing/printing any photographs/documents within this report.
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